
   

 
 

 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Wednesday, 5 June 2019 
 
Time:  2.00 pm (pre-meeting for all Committee members from 1:30pm) 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Corporate Director for Strategy and Resources 
 
Governance Officer: Zena West   Direct Dial: 0115 8764305 
 
 

   
1  APOLOGIES  

 
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held 6 March 2019 
 

3 - 8 

4  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

9 - 10 

5  ESTABLISHMENT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY CALL-IN 
PANEL  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

11 - 12 

6  KNIFE CRIME  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

13 - 20 

7  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 19/20  
Report of the Head of Legal and Governance 
 

21 - 24 

Public Document Pack



 
8  FUTURE MEETING DATES  

To meet at 2pm (with a required pre-meeting for Councillors from 
1:30pm) on the following dates: 

 5 June 2019 

 3 July 2019 

 4 September 2019 

 9 October 2019 

 6 November 2019 

 4 December 2019 

 8 January 2020 

 5 February 2020 

 4 March 2020 

 8 April 2020 
 

 

 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 
 
CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC. ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK. INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE.



 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley 
House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 6 March 2019 from 2.01 pm - 
3.57 pm 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Brian Parbutt (Chair) 
Councillor Anne Peach (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Jim Armstrong 
Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Patience Uloma Ifediora 
Councillor Glyn Jenkins 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Mohammed Saghir 
Councillor Cate Woodward 

Councillor Nicola Heaton 
Councillor Sue Johnson 
 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Councillor Linda 
Woodings 

- Portfolio Holder for Housing and Planning 

Matt Gregory - Growth Point Planning and Planning Policy Manager 
Mark Lowe - Head of Regeneration and Housing Delivery  
Zena West - Senior Governance Officer 
James Lavender - Governance Officer 
 
56  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Nicola Heaton – Work commitments. 
Councillor Sue Johnson – Council business. 
 
57  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
None. 
 
58  MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2019 were agreed as a correct record 
and signed by the Chair, subject to Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan’s apologies being 
recorded. 
 
59  DISCUSSION WITH THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING AND 

PLANNING 
 

Councillor Linda Woodings, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Planning delivered a 
presentation on the quarterly housing report, highlighting the following: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 6.03.19 

 

(a) as part of the Council Plan there are two major aims for the Portfolio. The first 
is to ensure that no statutorily homeless family would be staying in Bed and 
Breakfast accommodation in Nottingham by 31 December 2018. This target 
was achieved ahead of schedule by 24 December 2018. Fifty houses have 
been bought by the Council as temporary accommodation with fifty more in the 
pipeline; 
 

(b) the second aim for the Portfolio from the Council Plan is to build 2,500 new 
homes which are affordable for Nottingham residents to buy or rent. Over 
2,000 homes have been built so far, with over 500 more planned. Affordability 
is based on the average incomes of Nottingham citizens; 
 

(c) the new homes are being built based on needs, such as locality, student 
accommodation, sheltered accommodation, housing for those with specific 
needs, such as for people with disabilities, small and large families, and 
privately rented flats; 
 

(d) there has been a huge increase in the number of rough sleepers in the city. 
With a successful bid for national government money, Nottingham City Council 
has been able to buy accommodation for use as hostels for homeless people; 
 

(e) Nottingham City Council has assisted eleven homeless people with complex 
needs in getting accommodation suited to their needs;  
 

(f) the Portfolio Holder has met with local Housing Associations, such as 
Stonewater and Nottingham Community Housing Association, to discuss how 
they can work together to provide affordable housing to Nottingham residents; 
 

(g) with regards to student accommodation within the city, both universities have 
indicated plans to expand, but if the number of students falls below the 
demand for accommodation, vacant student accommodation may be released 
to the Council to provide for residents and to start charging Council Tax for 
that accommodation.  

 
RESOLVED to thank Councillor Woodings for the information provided. 
 
60  HOUSE BUILDING 

 
Mark Lowe, Head of Regeneration and Housing Delivery at Nottingham City Council, 
introduced a report on the Council’s House Building Programme, which noted;  
 

(a) the Council’s Housing Strategy 2018-21, which was agreed June 2018, sets 
out a vision for all Nottingham citizens to have access to good quality 
accommodation; 
 

(b) the strategy follows the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework, 
which aims to build 300,000 homes in England per year by the mid-2020s. In 
Nottingham, 6,020 new homes were delivered from 2011 to 2018, leaving 
11,130 to be delivered from 2018 to 2028, which is approximately 1,391 per 
year; 
 

Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 6.03.19 

 

(c) part two of the plan involves providing family housing and protecting family 
homes from conversion to other uses, encouraging self and custom build 
housing, building appropriate student accommodation, providing a strong 
policy framework for Houses in Multiple Occupation, and providing homes to 
meet the needs of older or disabled citizens; 
 

(d) with the growth of Purpose Built Student Accommodation, there was a 
decrease in the number of students living in traditional family housing in recent 
years, but there has been a slight increase this year as new developments 
cannot keep up with demand; 
 

(e) as part of the Council House Building Programme, 523 new units have been 
completed, 44 are currently being built, and 72 are in the pipeline, giving a 
total of 639. The total comprises 356 family houses, 113 bungalows, 134 
independent living scheme flats for older people and 36 general purpose flats; 
 

(f) in addition to new build provision, there is an ongoing acquisitions programme 
of second hand housing stock which is being undertaken as a quick and value 
for money way of replenishing Council housing stock. The abolition of the 
Housing Revenue Account borrowing cap means that Nottingham City Council 
can continue to provide Council Housing; 
 

(g) the Council Plan target for building ‘2,500 homes that Nottingham people can 
afford to rent or buy between 2015-2019’ is on course with 2,250 due to be 
completed by May 2019 and a further 558 in the pipeline; 
 

(h) work has been taking place with private and public sector providers, such as 
Blueprint and Nottingham City Homes to build housing in areas such as Trent 
Basin, Trent Lane, and the Park Yacht Club. The purpose of providing this is 
to keep young couples and families in the city rather than having them move to 
the suburbs. Likewise, the Council are working with registered housing 
providers such as Nottingham Community Housing Association to build 
houses on council land at College Way, Bilborough;  
 

(i) land and properties owned by the Council which are surplus assets are being 
sold to private developers to build new housing units on, but they come with a 
specific clause which prevents land being brought and then ‘banked’ (kept un-
developed for a long period);  
 

(j) private development partners have been procured to develop sites such as the 
Stonebridge Estate in St Anns; Arkwright Walk in the Meadows; and 
Kingsthorpe in St Anns. This allows the Council to have control, over and 
above the usual planning control mechanisms, to request specific house sizes 
or certain benefits to the wider community;  
 

(k) purpose-built Private Rented Sector (PRS) housing is being created for sites 
such as Arkwright’s Walk and Green Lane, Clifton; 
 

(l) potential sites for development have been identified in the Island Site and the 
Southern Gateway in the City;  

 

Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 6.03.19 

 

(m)specialist housing has been provided with Independent Living and Extra Care 
needs in mind for adults with learning difficulties and disabilities; 

 
(n) the challenges facing the development of housing in Nottingham include the 

decontamination of brownfield land and the costs incurred; land owners 
keeping their land un-developed in the hope of selling it for a higher price in 
future; contamination of land, and flood risks. There is a concern that much of 
the funding from Homes England may be earmarked for the south east, as 
well as funding and investment issues as a result of the ongoing uncertainty of 
Britain leaving the EU.   

 
The Committee considered the following points in discussions about the report;  
 

(a) Nottingham City Council and housing partners should look for funding 
opportunities to help prepare brownfield sites for construction, such as 
decontamination funding from Homes England;   
 

(b) monitoring of unused land in the city and connecting land owners with 
interested buyers and housing providers who want to build accommodation 
can be way to encourage further housing development. Land can be 
purchased through Compulsory Purchase Orders, but the Council would need 
to have firm business cases in order to do this; 
 

(c) clauses can be put into contracts for purchasing land from the Council that if it 
is not developed or used for a purpose of benefit to the community within a 
certain timeframe, the Council can buy the land back. This prevents land 
banking by developers;  
 

(d) it may be possible for the Council to work with smaller housing developers and 
individual builders to encourage smaller developments and help to build new 
homes. A series of smaller developers are more likely to meet housing 
demand than relying on larger developers, so support and encouragement 
should be provided to smaller developers where possible; 
 

(e) when new Council Housing schemes are planned, demand is analysed for 
housing type and size, based upon the Council House waiting list for the area. 
The average number of bedrooms for the houses being built as part of the 
Council’s House Building Programme is two or three bedrooms; 
 

(f) there has been a demographic shift of people moving to cities from the 
countryside, where amenities may have been cut or scaled back. This could 
increase demand for housing in Nottingham;  
 

(g) further considerations when completing the Council’s House Building 
Programme include building Homes for Life (houses which can meet the 
needs of home owners as they grow older), and making sure new homes are 
environmentally friendly and energy efficient in order to meet the City’s target 
of being carbon neutral by 2028. Stronger requirements from central 
Government on ensuring new homes are eco-friendly would be very useful in 
achieving this aim. Reductions in council funding is a major concern for house 
building in Nottingham and many councils across the country. 

Page 6



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 6.03.19 

 

 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) consider how the Council can support and encourage smaller builders 

and housing developers;  
 
(2) thank the Head of Regeneration and Housing Delivery for the information 

provided, and to note the contents. 
 
61  PROPERTY ASSET REGISTER - CORPORATE ASSET MANAGEMENT 

PLAN 
 

RESOLVED to note the contents of the written report.  
 
62  WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 

 
Zena West, Senior Governance Officer, presented a number of items suitable for 
consideration during the 2019/20 municipal year at Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, including: 

 the Citizen Satisfaction Survey; 

 the Colleague Satisfaction Survey; 

 homelessness; 

 rough Sleeper deaths; 

 review of Selective Licensing; 

 Nottingham’s economy building. 
 

Suggestions from Committee members included: 

 knife crime; 

 customer services / complaints / Have Your Say; 

 review of the implantation of the Workplace Parking Levy. 
 

RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) consider the following items at future meetings of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee: 

 knife crime (at the June or July 2019 meetings) 

 the Citizen Satisfaction Survey, the Colleague Satisfaction Survey, 
Customer Services, an update from the Portfolio Holder with a remit 
covering customer services (at the June of July 2019 meeting) 

 review of the implementation of the Workplace Parking Levy, review of 
Selective Licensing, homelessness, rough sleeper deaths, Nottingham’s 
economy building (to be scheduled); 

  
(2) thank Councillor Brian Parbutt for his service as Chair of Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee for a number of years.  
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

5 JUNE 2019 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE  

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To ensure all members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 

aware of the terms of reference for the Committee, and the implications 
for the operation of the Committee during the year. 

 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 To note the terms of reference for the Committee, as approved at 

Council on 20 May 2019. 
 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 On 20 May 2019 Council established the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee and agreed its terms of reference. 
 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 The City Council’s Constitution – https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-

council/about-the-council/nottingham-city-councils-constitution/  
 
6.2 Report to Council, 20 May 2019 – Appointments, Remits and First 

Meetings of Committees and Joint Bodies 2019/20 (appendix 1) - 
https://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=7830  

 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer 
 Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 0115 876 4305 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/nottingham-city-councils-constitution/
https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/nottingham-city-councils-constitution/
https://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=7830
mailto:Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

5 JUNE 2019 

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY CALL-IN PANEL  

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To establish the Call-in Panel as a sub-committee of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee for 2019/20, and approve the terms of reference and 
membership. 

 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 To establish the Call-In Panel. 
 
2.2 To note the terms of reference for Call-in Panel, as approved at Council 

on 20 May 2019. 
 
2.2 To note the membership of Call-in Panel as approved at Council on 20 

May 2019. 
 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 The terms of reference for Overview and Scrutiny Committee require it to 

appoint a Call-in Panel to respond to the call-in of Executive decisions 
prior to implementation. 

 
3.2 The Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is the Chair of the 

Call-in Panel, and the Vice-Chairs of the Committee will be Vice-Chairs 
of the Call-in Panel. 

 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 The City Council’s Constitution – https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-

council/about-the-council/nottingham-city-councils-constitution/  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/nottingham-city-councils-constitution/
https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/your-council/about-the-council/nottingham-city-councils-constitution/


 

6.2 Report to Council, 20 May 2019 – Appointments, Remits and First 
Meetings of Committees and Joint Bodies 2019/20 (appendix 1 and 
appendix 3)- 
https://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=7830 

 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer 
 Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 0115 876 4305 

Page 12

https://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=7830
mailto:Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

5 JUNE 2019 

KNIFE CRIME  

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To review statistical information provided by Nottinghamshire Police 

relating to knife crime in the region. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 Councillors are asked to review the information provided, ask questions 

of colleagues attending if appropriate, and make recommendations for 
further scrutiny as necessary. 

 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 Knife crime has received intense media scrutiny over recent months. 

Councillors have requested information be presented to Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee, so that they can learn what the particular issues 
affecting knife crime in Nottingham are, and what can be done to prevent 
incidents of knife crime. 

 
3.2 Representatives from Nottingham City Council’s Children’s’ Services and 

from Nottinghamshire Police will attend the meeting to provide 
information and answer the Committee’s questions. 

 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 Update on knife crime strategy May 2019 – provided by Nottinghamshire 

Police. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer 
 Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 0115 876 4305 

Page 14

mailto:Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Nottingham City Council Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Update on Nottinghamshire 

Knife Crime Strategy May 2019 

Supt Matthew McFarlane has taken over the role of co-ordinating activity to deliver the 

knife crime strategy for the OPCC. He replaces the previous postholder (Supt Simon Firth) 

who is retiring from policing. 

An update on some key areas of activity: 

Knife crime in Nottinghamshire has increased over the last 12 months with figures to the 

end of 2018 showing a rise of 9.5% (an increase of 77 offences). 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Core Cities Forces comparison
Ranked by % change

12 months 

to Dec 17

12 months 

to Dec 18

Change % Change

Greater Manchester (Manchester) 1,484 3,614 +2,130 +143.5%

Merseyside (Liverpool) 910 1,231 +321 +35.3%

South Wales (Cardiff) 591 724 +133 +22.5%

West Yorkshire (Leeds) 2,259 2,715 +456 +20.2%

West Midlands (Birmingham) 2,751 3,210 +459 +16.7%

Nottinghamshire (Nottingham) 812 889 +77 +9.5%

Avon & Somerset (Bristol) 550 596 +46 +8.4%

Northumbria (Newcastle) 850 887 +37 +4.4%

Metropolitan Police 14,504 14,660 +156 +1.1%

South Yorkshire (Sheffield) 1,027 994 -33 -3.2%

Core Cities Forces Average 25,738 29,520 +3,782 +14.7%

Local Regional Forces 

comparison
Ranked by % change

12 months 

to Dec 17

12 months 

to Dec 18

Change % Change

Derbyshire 478 581 +103 +21.5%

Leicestershire 697 824 +127 +18.2%

Lincolnshire 225 259 +34 +15.1%

Nottinghamshire 812 889 +77 +9.5%

Northamptonshire 468 487 +19 +4.1%

MSG Cities Forces Average 2,680 3,040 +360 +13.4%

MSG Forces comparison
Ranked by % change

12 months 

to Dec 17

12 months 

to Dec 18

Change % Change

Kent 771 925 +154 +20.0%

Leicestershire 697 824 +127 +18.2%

Lancashire 942 1,038 +96 +10.2%

Nottinghamshire 812 889 +77 +9.5%

South Yorkshire 1,027 994 -33 -3.2%

Bedfordshire 479 451 -28 -5.8%

Hertfordshire 564 490 -74 -13.1%

Essex 1,026 677 -349 -34.0%

MSG Cities Forces Average 6,318 6,288 -30 -0.5%

Page 15



Nottinghamshire Police Knife Crime Team 

The work of this team, of a Sgt & 6 PCs continues. Proactive policing is undertaken in areas 

identified at high risk of knife crime through the operational tasking meeting. The capacity 

of the team is increased through ongoing deployments of response officers working 

alongside it, this also spreads the experience of proactive patrolling and use of stop/search 

powers effectively. 

 

Nottinghamshire Police Robbery Team 

We are developing a new robbery team which will use detectives to better focus on 

investigating knife crime robberies. 

Integrated Offender Management 

Work is on-going to expand our Integrated Offender Management offer to enable the 

management of an increased number of knife crime adult non-statutory offenders within 

the community.  Recruitment is currently ongoing to identify two probation officers to take 

on this work and it is anticipated that they will be in post by July 2019.  Work is currently 

ongoing to identify an initial cohort of 70 offenders for them to engage with on taking up 

their posts.  

Street Doctors 

We have engaged the charity Street Doctors in conjunction with Nottingham University to 

utilise medical students to deliver lessons in schools and alternative education providers 

around challenging attitudes to violence as well as equipping young people with the 

practical skills required to provide a first aid response to a victim of a knife injury whilst they 

await an ambulance to attend.  This project was funded via the Cascade fund, Nottingham 

University for the 2018/2019 financial year. A new stream of funding for the £6,000, is 

required to continue with this project for the current financial year. 

Knife Crime Learning Zone – National Justice Museum 

The new knife crime learning zone at the National Justice Museum will launch on 27 June 

2019. This is a partnership with the National Justice Museum and the Ben Kinsella Trust.  

The zone will be a permanent facility which is anticipated to host over 2500 children over 

the next 12 months.  Consideration needs to be given to supporting on going operational 

costs which are projected at £50K per annum. As part of the project we are developing a 

knife crime homicide families group to help shape a Nottinghamshire theme to the learning 

zone and to develop both an educational and wider communication platform for the 

families to spread the message of the devastating impact on families of knife offending. In 

the first instance twelve families have agreed to support the initiative which is being 

developed together with EMSOU Homicide and Stone Soup Academy. 

  

Page 16



Mentors in Violence Prevention 

We are collaborating with the Scottish Violence Reduction Unit (VRU) to bring their 

successful Mentors In Violence Prevention Project to secondary schools across 

Nottinghamshire.  The project aims to get young people to champion with their peers 

healthy relationships and tackle all forms of violence with a specific focus on knife crime.  

This project has been a central plank of the VRU’s work in combatting knife crime in 

Scotland.  Eight schools and one alternative provider are identified to pilot the project in 

September 2019.  The cost of the project is £12K which is being funded by the OPCC. 

Violence Interrupters/Outreach youth work in Nottingham City Centre 
£30K of Home Office funding was secured from the Early Intervention Fund  to establish and 
deploy violence interrupters to key hot spots within the city centre. To this end Nottingham 
Forest community Trust and Breaking Barriers, Building Bridges have been engaged. These 
are individuals with community credibility who are deemed capable of relating to young 
people at risk of committing knife crime who would deescalate conflicts and provide non-
violent alternative ways of dealing with confrontation including referrals to positive 
activities.  Further funding sources to continue this work are being identified.  
 

Initial outcomes and impact March 1st –April 5th 2019: 

 Number of young people engaged (around 500 in total an average of 40 per day 

engaged in conversation) 

 Number of violence de-escalation incidents (5 recorded interventions) 

 Number of retailers engaged and informed of the violence interrupter programme 

(15 to-date) 

 Number of positive engagements with the Police (10 occasions) 

 Number of young people engaged with suspected of carrying knives (26) 

Consideration is currently being given to how this intervention could be funded moving 

forward. 

There are currently active discussions between the OPCC, NFFC community Trust, 

Nottinghamshire Police, English Premier League, Nottingham Business Improvement District 

and Nottingham City Council to further fund the program for a period of 12 months and in 

addition create a safe space for young people adjacent to Market Square, Nottingham as 

well as re position the NFFC / Premier league ‘Kicks’ program to knife crime hot spot 

locations.  

Multi-Agency Risk Management 

Work is on-going on a delivery model for a multi-agency approach to identify and manage 

risk in relation to knife crime. This will include individuals currently involved, or at risk of 

becoming involved, in knife crime, whether as victims or offenders, and also those locations 

Page 17



most vulnerable to this type of criminality, whether this is public spaces or licensed 

premises. In addition they are working toward a common set of risk factors and a process 

for identifying, on a regular basis, those peoples and places potentially at risk. Finally, they 

are seeking to agree to a method for the effective coordination, analysis and dissemination 

of the data to the relevant stakeholders and operational teams. Currently working with 

Nottingham Trent University to ensure the methodology for identifying young persons at 

risk is robust and fit for purpose. It is hoped that this work will be completed by July 2019 to 

allow targeted interventions through the Nottingham city Troubled families program. Work 

is being undertaken to allow for the sharing of information in relation to this project. 

 

NTU research re engagement by victims 

Together with Nottingham Trent University we are carrying out research with young people 

subject to serious youth violence to better understand the critical success factors required 

to better engage with victims of knife violence.  Currently 25% of knife violence victims 

refuse to cooperate with a police investigation.  It is anticipated that this work stream will 

report by July 2019. The project lead NTU staff member Sarah Hilder is looking for 

opportunities to discuss her findings work with partnership colleagues.  

‘No point’ knives 

We are trialling the replacement of domestic carving knives with specialist ‘no point’ knives 

to victims of knife violence within a domestic setting.  These ‘No Point’ knives do not have a 

sharp point and have been specially designed to prevent stab / puncture type injuries. They 

are currently being utilised as part of safety planning for victims of knife violence within a 

domestic setting. 

Medical Bleed Kits 

Together with Nottingham Business Improvement District and the Trauma Unit at QMC we 
are developing the issuing of specialist medical packs to business / retail and night time 
economy venues across Nottingham City centre to enhance the first aid provision available. 
Nottingham BID have funded 100 kits for the city centre. We are also delivering enhanced 
first aid training to workers within these identified premises.  It is anticipated that the 
training will commence May 2019. A further meeting has taken place between 
representatives of Nottinghamshire county council and the six district councils to consider a 
similar initiative across the County. 
 

Home Office Knife Crime Fund 2019 

The Government recently announced the provision of £100m into policing to deal with 

Serious Violence. Alex Hurst (Deputy Director of the Serious Violence Project Unit) further 

reported on the £100m in a national briefing to the PCC’s on 30th April 2019. £65m of this 

funding has been allocated to surge activity. (The remaining £35m has been dedicated to 

the establishment/development of Violence Reduction Units). £51m surge funding has been 

allocated to 18 forces. Nottinghamshire has been allocated £1.5m. £1.6m has been 

Page 18



allocated nationally to data requirements The remaining £12.4m is currently un - allocated 

and an update in respect of its availability is expected in the coming months.  

The HO requires monthly returns on the utilisation of this funding. 

A plan is being developed, with a range of activity to ensure this funding is utilised well 

locally.  

 
Nottinghamshire Youth Commission 
Initial planning is under way within the OPCC to hold a further youth violence / knife crime 
conference on 21 June 2019 targeting young people and their families to better engage and 
understand the challenges they face and to help shape future provision. Statutory agencies, 
schools, alternative providers and the third sector have been reached out to help shape the 
proposals. 
 
Lifeskills Education in Primary Schools 
Nottinghamshire police and the OPCC have funded Lifeskills Education to provide an 
education programme to year 6 primary schools pupils in Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 
addressing risky behaviours associated with hate crime, knife crime drugs and alcohol. 
 

The new programme will be offered to all state funded primary schools in the  County of 

Nottinghamshire and the City of Nottingham of which there are 353 with approximately 

13,350 pupils in the target group. The project will run for three years. The funding 

arrangements do require some contribution towards half the cost of delivery. 

The delivery aims at 5436 lessons in the 353 schools (average 1.4 classes per schools 11 

lesson per class.).  

The program will also address dealing with Hate Crime, Bullying and Coercion  together with 

knife crime, drugs and alcohol which also links in to the Government’s Serious Violence 

Strategy with a clear read across to ‘County Lines’. The funding meets 50% of the costs to 

the Primary school providers. 

Youth Endowment Fund 

In February 2019, the OPCC hosted a Home Office regional serious violence conference for 

statutory, non-statutory and third sector organisations. Feedback from the event is 

informing the delivery of future funding opportunities from the recently announced Youth 

Endowment Fund. The fund (£200m) will be run by Impetus, in partnership with the Early 

Intervention Foundation and Social Investment Business.  

The fund aims to prevent children and young people from getting caught up in crime and 
violence, by making sure that those most at risk get the best possible support, as early as 
possible, to get on a positive path and succeed.  

The Youth Endowment Fund will do this by: 

Page 19

https://impetus.org.uk/
https://www.eif.org.uk/
https://www.eif.org.uk/
https://www.sibgroup.org.uk/


 Finding, supporting and evaluating programmes working with young people most at 
risk of involvement in crime and violence — providing funding, capacity building and 
evaluation support 
 
 Generating and promoting new knowledge and practice to transform local and 
national responses to tackling youth offending, and supporting the best evidenced 
programmes to have an even greater impact. 
 
 Developing an approach to working with local communities to prevent youth 
offending — driving long term, sustainable change in those communities. 
 
 Impetus plans to launch the first funding round, a general open call round, with the 
aim of awarding the first round of grants in the autumn. 
 

Offensive Weapons Bill 2019  
Both Houses have agreed on the text of the Bill which now waits for the final stage of Royal 
Assent when the Bill will become an Act of Parliament. A date for Royal Assent is yet to be 
scheduled. 

The Bill will make it illegal to possess certain offensive weapons like zombie knives and 

knuckle-dusters in private. 

Other measures include: 

 Stopping knives being sent to residential addresses after they are bought 

online 

 changing the legal definition for threatening with an offensive weapon to 

make prosecutions easier 

 banning the possession of a knife on a further education premises 

 banning rapid firing rifles, and certain powerful firearms and bump stocks, 

which increase a rifle’s rate of fire 

 updating the definition of a flick knife to reflect changing weapon designs 

 Creating new knife crime prevention orders for both juvenile and adult 

offenders. 

 

Page 20



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

5 JUNE 2019 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20  

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To consider the Committee’s work programme for 2019/20 based on 

areas of work identified by the Committee at its 6 March 2019 meeting. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 To note the work that is currently planned for the 2019/20 municipal year, 

and make amendments to the programme as appropriate. 
 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 The Committee is responsible for setting and managing its own work 

programme. 
 
3.2 In setting a programme for scrutiny activity, the Committee should aim 

for an outcome-focused work programme that has clear priorities and a 
clear link to its roles and responsibilities. The work programme needs to 
be flexible so that issues which arise as the year progresses can be 
considered appropriately. 

 
3.3 Where there are a number of potential items that could be scrutinised in 

a given year, consideration of what represents the highest priority or area 
of risk will assist with work programme planning. Changes and/or 
additions to the work programme will need to take account of the 
resources available to the Committee.  

 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting 2019/20 Work Programme. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1  None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 Minutes from Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held 6 March 

2019 - 
https://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=230&MId=7379&Ver=4 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

https://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=230&MId=7379&Ver=4


 

7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Zena West, Senior Governance Officer 
 Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
 0115 876 4305 

Page 22

mailto:Zena.West@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2019/20 Work Programme  

 
DATE ITEMS CONTACT 

5 June 2019 
Terms of Ref SGO (Zena West) 

Establishment of Call-in Panel SGO (Zena West) 

Knife crime in Nottingham Nottinghamshire Police 

3 July 2019 

Citizen Satisfaction Survey NCC (TBC) 

Colleague Satisfaction Survey NCC (TBC) 

Customer Services / Update from the Portfolio Holder with a remit covering Customer Services 
NCC (TBC) + Councillor Sally 

Longford 

4 September 

2019 

Homelessness and Rough Sleeper Deaths NCC (TBC) 

Housing Aid NCC (TBC) 

Selective Licensing NCC (TBC) 

Update from the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Planning and Heritage Councillor Linda Woodings 

9 October 2019 Universal Credit NCC (TBC) 

Update from the Portfolio Holder for Portfolio Holder for Communities Councillor Rebecca Langton 

6 November 

2019 Update on the Workplace Parking Levy NCC (TBC) 

 Update from the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Growth and the City Centre Councillor Sam Webster 

8 January 2020 Update from the Portfolio Holder for Early Years, Education and Employment (issues within the 
employment remit) 

Councillor Neghat Khan 

5 February 

2020 Update from the Portfolio Holder for Leisure, Culture and IT Councillor Dave Trimble 

4 March 2020 Update from the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Local Transport (issues within the local 
transport remit) 

Councillor Adele Williams 

8 April 2020 
  

 

DATE ITEMS CONTACT 

Unscheduled Economy Building TBC 

Unscheduled   

Unscheduled   

Unscheduled   

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference
	5 Establishment of the Overview and Scrutiny Call-In Panel
	6 Knife Crime
	Appendix 1

	7 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 19/20
	Appendix 1


